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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: My name is David

          3  Weprin.  I Chair the Finance Committee.  A number of

          4  my colleagues are here and will be trickling in over

          5  the next 10 minutes or so.

          6                 We have Deputy Majority Leader Bill

          7  Perkins from Manhattan; Council Member Robert

          8  Jackson from Manhattan; we have Majority Leader Joel

          9  Rivera from the Bronx; we have Council Member Mike

         10  Nelson from Brooklyn; Council Member Gale Brewer

         11  from Manhattan; Council Member Madeline Provenzano

         12  from the Bronx; and Jim Caras on my immediate right,

         13  who is Counsel to the Finance Committee.

         14                 We have a number of items on our

         15  agenda today.  We are hearing two resolutions, which

         16  will start the law- making process for the creation

         17  of two new Business Improvement Districts.         The

         18  first is Resolution 478- A, which would set

         19  September 9th as the day that this Committee will

         20  take up the local law to establish the Forest Avenue

         21  BID.  This BID, if established, will be the first

         22  Business Improvement District in the Borough of

         23  Staten Island.

         24                 We will also consider Resolution 479-

         25  A, which sets September 9th as the date for the
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          2  public hearing on the Local Law to establish the

          3  Myrtle Avenue, Brooklyn BID.

          4                 On September 9th we will hear from

          5  all those who may be affected by the establishments

          6  of these two BIDs, those who wish to speak, and then

          7  we will adjourn until the statutory objection period

          8  has run, before we actually act on either of the

          9  local laws.

         10                 The Department of Small Business

         11  Services has provided us with a page that was

         12  inadvertently omitted from the Myrtle Avenue BID

         13  District Plan.  This page is attached to the back of

         14  your BID packets.

         15                 We will also consider two resolutions

         16  calling for amendments to the State Real Property

         17  Tax Law.  One of these resolutions, 373, would

         18  repeal the State cap of $500,000 on the amounts of

         19  A) localities can receive for maintaining adequate

         20  assessment standards.  Without the cap in place the

         21  City would be entitled to almost 2.5 million more in

         22  State Aid then it will receive next year.  Capping

         23  the City's State assistance when other jurisdictions

         24  get the full amount of aid the formula entitles them

         25  to is completely counter- intuitive in the wake of
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          2  the Property Tax Assessment scandals that the City

          3  has weathered.

          4                 We will also consider Resolution 467,

          5  which would provide that non- profits acquiring

          6  property that would otherwise be exempt, get their

          7  property tax exemption effective on the date of

          8  acquisition of the property.  There are too many

          9  cases in which a religious or charitable

         10  organization acquires property without realizing

         11  that depending upon when they acquire the property

         12  they are subject to property taxes for a period

         13  between 6 and 18 months, because of the way the

         14  taxable status of the properties in the City is

         15  currently determined.  The Department of Finance has

         16  a proposal which would allow them to apply for the

         17  tax exemption immediately upon acquiring the

         18  property.  And this resolution calls on Albany to

         19  enact this change.

         20                 Finally, we will consider a

         21  resolution involving incentives to help Midtown

         22  businesses that will inevitably suffer due to the

         23  measures taken by the City to ensure safety during

         24  the Republican National Convention.  The Resolution

         25  calls on the State to provide an additional sales
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          2  tax free week in the week following the Convention

          3  for the area around Madison Square Garden.

          4                 We do not want a Convention that was

          5  supposed to help our City to end up creating

          6  unintended and harmful economic effects on the host

          7  neighborhood, and to the extent that unintended,

          8  economic hardships befall the area because of

          9  security concerns, we owe it to that neighborhood to

         10  give it a helping hand.            We will now hear

         11  from the Department of Small Business Services from

         12  Assistant Commissioner Michael Smith.

         13                 We have been joined by Council Member

         14  Christine Quinn from Manhattan, and Council Member

         15  Lew Fidler from Brooklyn, and Council Member

         16  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.

         17                 Commissioner.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SMITH:  Good

         19  morning.  Good morning, Chairman Weprin, and to the

         20  members of the Finance Committee, and members of the

         21  City Council.  It is good to be here this morning.

         22  My name is Michael Smith.  I am Assistant

         23  Commissioner for the Department of Small Business

         24  Services in our Neighborhood Development Division.

         25                 Small Business Services supports the

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Council's resolution setting the date, time, and

          3  place for the public hearing concerning the

          4  establishment of the Forest Avenue Business

          5  Improvement District in the Borough of Staten

          6  Island, and the Myrtle Avenue Brooklyn Business

          7  Improvement District in the Borough of Brooklyn.

          8  The Forest Avenue and Myrtle Avenue Brooklyn

          9  Steering Committees have successfully completed the

         10  outreach work consistent with Small Business

         11  Services Program Rules.  In addition, Small Business

         12  Services has reviewed the boundaries of the proposed

         13  Forest Avenue and Myrtle Avenue Brooklyn BIDs, and

         14  found the boundaries to be acceptable.

         15                 The Department of Small Business

         16  Services will arrange for the publication of the

         17  summaries of the City Council's resolutions, at

         18  least, once in the City Record.  The Forest Avenue

         19  and Myrtle Avenue Business Improvement Districts

         20  Steering Committees will conduct the mailings of

         21  summaries of the resolutions as required by the BID

         22  Law.

         23                 For the record, as the Councilman

         24  stated, Small Business Services has submitted a

         25  missing page of the Myrtle Avenue Business
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          2  Improvement District Plan in order to correct a

          3  machine copying error.

          4                 I thank you very much for your

          5  attention this morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Any members have

          7  any questions for Mr. Smith?  Seeing none, we will

          8  vote on the BIDs package, along with the other

          9  items, in a little while.

         10                 Okay, I am now going to call upon Sam

         11  Miller from the Department of Finance to testify on

         12  the two tax resolutions that we have.  And that is

         13  specifically, Reso. 393 and Reso. 467.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Good

         15  morning, Chairman Weprin.  My name is Sam Miller.  I

         16  am an Assistant Commissioner at the New York City

         17  Department of Finance.  On behalf of Commissioner

         18  Martha E. Stark, thank you for allowing me to offer

         19  brief testimony this morning.

         20                 Resolution 467 calls on the State to

         21  adopt legislation that would allow Finance to grant

         22  property tax exemptions to qualified, not- for-

         23  profit organizations starting on the day they

         24  acquire the property.  This legislation would

         25  eliminate, as you mentioned in your testimony,
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          2  eliminate the confusion of the current law, thereby

          3  preventing churches, synagogues, mosques, and other

          4  charitable organizations from falling behind in

          5  their taxes.

          6                 Currently, Finance must grant an

          7  exemption for a fiscal year beginning July 1 based

          8  on the property's status as of the preceding January

          9  5, which is known in the law as the "taxable status

         10  date."  For this reason, it can take as long as 18

         11  months for a not- for- profit organization to gain a

         12  tax exemption from the time that it acquires a

         13  property.  For example, under current law, if the

         14  not- for- profit "Free Apples for All" buys a

         15  property on January 10,2005 and applies for a tax

         16  exemption, Finance cannot grant the exemption until

         17  July 2006, which is the beginning of the Fiscal Year

         18  2007.

         19                 For almost half of Fiscal Year 2005,

         20  and all of Fiscal Year 2006, "Free Apples for All"

         21  would be liable for the full property tax bill.  If

         22   "Free Apples for All" were to purchase the property

         23  on January 4th, 2005, Finance could grant the

         24  exemption in July 2005, so there is a, you know, it

         25  is a technicality that we are trying to change with
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          2  this law. Unfortunately, as you mentioned, a

          3  significant number of not- for profits do not

          4  understand the law, and assume that because they are

          5  charitable organization they are entitled to a

          6  property tax exemption from the date of purchase.

          7  In fact, many not- for- profits also do not realize

          8  that they have to apply for an exemption, because

          9  the law says that Finance must grant an exemption

         10  based on the use of the property, not just on the

         11  ownership.  This is because some not- for- profits

         12  rent part of their property for commercial purposes,

         13  and are liable for taxes on those portions of the

         14  property.

         15                 The legislation we are pursuing in

         16  Albany would still require not- for- profits to

         17  apply for an exemption, but it would allow Finance

         18  to grant exemptions from the date of purchase once

         19  these organizations apply.  As a result, fewer not-

         20  for- profits would unwittingly fail to pay taxes for

         21  a tax quarter or even for a whole year.

         22                 Finance estimates that the

         23  legislation would cost the City about $1 million per

         24  year in tax revenue.  We believe that this is a

         25  small price to pay to prevent not- for- profits from
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          2  falling behind in their taxes, which hurts their

          3  ability to deliver services in the community.

          4                 Furthermore, the legislation would

          5  alleviate the administrative burden on Finance when

          6  the State, by passing pieces of so- called "special

          7  legislation," authorizes the agency to grant

          8  exemptions to individual not- for- profits

          9  retroactively.  We takes these laws very seriously,

         10  which requires the agency to research our records

         11  going back dozens of years, in some cases, in order

         12  to determine whether a retroactive exemption is

         13  appropriate.

         14                 For these reasons I strongly urge the

         15  Council to approve this resolution and join our

         16  effort to pass this legislation in Albany.

         17                 Resolution 393 calls on the State to

         18  adopt legislation that would eliminate an unfair cap

         19  on aid that the State provides to New York City to

         20  support the valuation of real property.  Through the

         21  State jurisdictions receive five dollars in State

         22  aid for every property that they value.  New York

         23  City's aid, however, is capped at $500,000.  Since

         24  there are about 950,000 properties in New York City,

         25  without a cap the City under the five dollars per
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          2  parcel rule would receive $4.7 million in State aid.And

          3  I understand I have an error in my testimony, I

          4  understand that next year the aid per parcel goes

          5  down to three dollars.  So the amount of aid we

          6  would receive if the cap were lifted altogether

          7  would be about a million and a half dollars less

          8  than what I have in my testimony.  But the point

          9  remains that the cap is hurting New York City.

         10                 Because of the sheer volume of

         11  properties that we value each year, the variation of

         12  these properties and the complexity of Sate property

         13  tax laws, which Commissioner Stark has talked about

         14  before this Committee many times, we have embarked

         15  on an aggressive plan to train our assessors and

         16  provide them with the most up- to- date technology

         17  so they can do their jobs accurately, efficiently,

         18  and in ways that are transparent and easier to

         19  monitor.  It will be more difficult to make these

         20  changes as quickly as we would like to without our

         21  fair share of State aid.

         22                 For these reasons, we support

         23  Resolution 467, and hope that the Council will help

         24  us pursue this as well.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          3  Commissioner Miller. We have been joined by a number

          4  of our colleagues since the last round of

          5  introductions.  We have Council Member Simcha Felder

          6  from Brooklyn; Council Member Albert Vann from

          7  Brooklyn; Council Member Helen Sears from Queens;

          8  and Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan,

          9  oh, and Council Member, Minority Leader Jim Oddo

         10  from Staten Island, welcome.

         11                 I believe Council Member Robert

         12  Jackson had a question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Not a

         14  question, Mr. Chair. I wanted to, as the prime

         15  sponsor of Reso. 393, I wanted to read a statement,

         16  if you do not mind.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Proceed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         19  you.  Good morning everyone, and I Chair the

         20  Contracts Committee, and I am the lead sponsor of

         21  Reso. 393.  I am pleased this morning to come and

         22  brief you on this Reso.  As you will hear, as you

         23  heard from the Assistant Commissioner of the Finance

         24  Department.  Also, David Moog, who is the President

         25  of Local 1757 of DC37, will testify later
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          2  representing the property assessors, appraisers and

          3  housing development specialists.  And I believe

          4  Alaina Colon of Assembly Member Scott Stringer's

          5  Office, and as you know, Scott Stringer Chairs the

          6  City's Committee in the State Assembly, and he is

          7  the prime sponsor of the legislation that we are

          8  referring in reference to this resolution.

          9                 The support of these diverse

         10  stakeholders demonstrate the importance of this

         11  particular issue.  Assembly Bill 3723- B, and Senate

         12  Bill 3963- B, seek to correct an injustice in State

         13  assessment aid to New York City.  Currently, the

         14  State reimburses counties and assessing units for

         15  properly maintained, property assessment rolls.  The

         16  total amount of reimbursement per assessment unit is

         17  capped at $500,000.

         18                 New York City is the only

         19  jurisdiction in the State of New York that is

         20  negatively impacted by this cap, the only

         21  jurisdiction, which effectively cheats us out of

         22  millions of dollars.  And we would like to be

         23  entitled to what we are entitled to.  And the State

         24  bills would remove this unfair cap.

         25                 And so I would like to thank Assembly
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          2  Member Stringer for his leadership and strong

          3  advocacy on behalf of the City.  He has pushed this

          4  bill for several legislative sessions, and

          5  hopefully, this year, we will see this law, this

          6  bill passed into law.

          7                 Also, I would like to thank Local

          8  1757, President David, who is here, who brought this

          9  issue to my attention this spring and has worked

         10  closely with my office, Joe McNerney (phonetic), my

         11  special assistant, in order to bring this resolution

         12  to the floor.

         13                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         15  Council member, and I am in total agreement that New

         16  York City should get their fair share, and certainly

         17  this is much needed, and there is no excuse for

         18  discriminating and singling out the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 I am now going to call upon Council

         21  Member Simcha Felder to address, who is the prime

         22  sponsor of Resolution 467 to discuss his resolution.

         23    Council Member Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair, and good morning, and thank you for your
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          2  leadership on this resolution as well.  I want to

          3  thank the Department of Finance for listening, and

          4  we really appreciate it because I think it has been

          5  about two years that we have brought up, myself and

          6  many of my colleagues have brought up what I would

          7  consider an injustice, or an inequity, or whatever

          8  other word you want to use for it.  Because not- for

          9  profits, whether they are synagogues, mosques,

         10  churches, or anything else, really get a raw deal

         11  because they do not know what they are doing, many

         12  of them do not know what they are doing in terms of

         13  the their finances.  And even under the best case

         14  scenario even if they know what they are doing, and

         15  they file timely, they still are subject to a

         16  minimum of about six months worth of real estate

         17  taxes.  Is that true?

         18                 MR. MILLER:  Very often, yes, and

         19  sometimes that six- month period is, you know, those

         20  taxes are folded into the purchase price, but there

         21  are times when that happens.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Right.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         24  Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So, and
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          2  everyone admits that the question is whether they

          3  are really not- for- profits and what the purpose,

          4  the use of the property is.  And if the use of the

          5  property is for not- for- profits and they are not

          6  leasing any portion of their property for commercial

          7  use, that they deserve the break on taxes.

          8                 And I know our office has had on

          9  average, I would say, at least two cases per year,

         10  that we have cases of organizations that somebody

         11  did not know what they were doing, they did not file

         12  on time, it has been years that they have piled up

         13  in taxes.  And the only possible, and I underline

         14  possible, relief is to get special legislation done

         15  to Albany, which would allow the Finance Department

         16  to forgive it, if they can.  And if that is the

         17  case, in our office, I would believe that many of my

         18  colleagues have had those situations, and it just

         19  makes so much sense that the City, you know there is

         20  very little that the City, at this time, is able to

         21  do to assist not- for- profits in any way, due to

         22  the separation of church and state.

         23                 But clearly, this is one very easy

         24  way that the Department of Finance is making a

         25  statement and saying, we understand, we get it, and
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          2  that those institutions that are in dire need of

          3  funds and are so desperate, we want to do everything

          4  and anything we legally can to help them serve

          5  people in New York City.

          6                 So we appreciate it very much.

          7                 That is my statement.  My question

          8  is, I have somebody in the State Senate who is

          9  interested in the legislation and in the Assembly.

         10  I just want to know where it goes from here, because

         11  the Resolution in and of itself is just an

         12  opportunity for me to get on record to be able to

         13  take credit for it.  But the question is, how is it

         14  actually is it going to get done?  What is the

         15  mechanism for this getting done so that we can come

         16  back next year at this time and be able to thank you

         17  for actually having it in law?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  The

         19  City's lobbying office is in Albany now, obviously,

         20  with all of the budget things that are happening,

         21  and they are pushing very hard for this.  So

         22  everybody, you know, from the Administration, OMB,

         23  everybody is on board, and we are pushing very hard.

         24    And I think any, you know, any lobbying THAT you

         25  or the Council, as a whole, could do to talk to the
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          2  State Senators you believe are supportive, would be

          3  helpful.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  My specific

          5  question is, that practically speaking, it is

          6  unlikely that this is going to get passed in this

          7  budget.  Is that true?  During this session, or is

          8  that still a possibility?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Last

         10  I heard, we were pushing for it.  I do not know.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Oh,

         12  wonderful.  So then if it does not get done, if for

         13  some reason it does not get done now, then you would

         14  have to find two sponsors.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         16  Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So I am very

         18  interested in-

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  It is

         20  going to be the top of our agenda, if it does not

         21  get passed this year, absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Well I am

         23  very interested in being of help, if there is help

         24  needed.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          6  Council member. Council Member Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chair. Council Member Felder addressed one of my

          9  concerns, because this is almost like a side bar in

         10  that at a closing for properties. Doesn't there have

         11  to be the obligations that the financial dealings

         12  are resolved, and then the parties go on with the

         13  ownership?  How is it often found that the religious

         14  institution may be left holding the bag for this

         15  financial burden?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Well

         17  I just think that small non- profits who are not

         18  savvy about the laws are not savvy, and they

         19  purchase the property, and they do not realize that

         20  they purchased the property on December 25th, that

         21  they are going to be liable for taxes for the

         22  remaining, I mean, sometimes it is as simple as not

         23  understanding the difference between a fiscal year

         24  and a calendar year, and understanding, you know,

         25  tax bills start on July 1st for the fiscal year
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          2  through June 30th.  And I just think, you know, many

          3  of these are small institutions, they are focusing,

          4  as you know, on serving the community, and they may,

          5  perhaps, don't have a real estate lawyer or a tax

          6  attorney that they can consult with.  So they wind

          7  up, then they get a tax bill from us, and then they

          8  ignore it because they believe, hey, I am a not-

          9  for- profit, I do not have to pay taxes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Wouldn't it

         11  have to be, though, resolved by the time it closed

         12  or they would have to be notified, obviously, in

         13  writing they would have this.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         15  Typically it is resolved at closing.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So it is

         17  their responsibility.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:

         19  Typically it is, but it often isn't.  And so what we

         20  are trying to do with this bill is try to make it

         21  even easier for people.  If we make it, you know,

         22  the exemption available from the date of purchase,

         23  than you do not have to be as savvy, you tell us in

         24  your application, we purchased it on January 10th.

         25  Okay, the exemption starts January 10th, if we
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          2  approve your application.  Not, okay, now you have

          3  to wait until the following July, because they do

          4  not understand that, and then they wait for years,

          5  and we see this every year during the Tax Lien Sale

          6  as well, if they are not- for- profits that are

          7  endangered of having a lien sold.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well

          9  shouldn't Finances, the Department of Finance's real

         10  targets should be the people who were responsible of

         11  closing and/or the previous owner, and not the

         12  present owners, who are, usually they do not have to

         13  be innocent, but presumably, I believe most of the

         14  time.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Well

         16  if you are asking me should we work kind of more

         17  closely with the Land Title Association or those

         18  folks to make sure that people know, absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  They are

         20  responsible, right, personally responsible or

         21  corporately.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Well,

         23  clearly, the owner is responsible.  What I think I

         24  hear you saying is that we could do, maybe, a better

         25  job of reaching out to the people who are involved
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          2  in closings, and help them to inform.  You know, we

          3  could talk to not- for- profit organizations and

          4  say, hey, look, remember this is the law.  So when

          5  your members, when your community- based

          6  organizations, or your churches, or your synagogues,

          7  purchase property, unless, first of all, they have

          8  to apply for an exemption, do not assume you get it.

          9    Second of all, remember that taxes may still be

         10  liable for some, period.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  This might

         12  the restructuring the Finance Law with that.  But

         13  going, even after the fact, to this point now, I

         14  really wish Finance was more lenient with some of

         15  the penalties, and just the fact that they owe them

         16  money, is kind of harsh.  You might need somebody in

         17  your Department just to handle these type of

         18  complaints.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Well

         20  we do handle them every day, but we cannot, we have

         21  to follow the law, and the law says that taxes are

         22  due, which is why we are trying to change the law so

         23  that we can be more lenient.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And in the

         25  lenient department I would like to maybe speak to

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  you after the meeting or some time about it, a few

          3  that have contacted me crying the religious

          4  institution and the not- for- profit and they really

          5  cannot afford this.  And if some leniency could be

          6  shown, it would be really wonderful.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER:  I

          9  would be happy to talk to you afterwards.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         13  Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ;  I have a

         15  serious problem with this proposal.  I am a person

         16  who has been looking at this issue in the Council

         17  for a while, particularly, serving an institution

         18  like private universities that are basically

         19  exploiting our neighborhood, taking away affordable

         20  housing, the space that exists in there, creating

         21  units of housing for the students only, luxury

         22  housing, basically, and benefiting from a lot of tax

         23  exemption. Then on top of that they utilize the

         24  infrastructure, the community resources, but they do

         25  not contribute in any way, shape or form. And here
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          2  we are putting another piece of legislation to give

          3  them more benefits without asking them what is it

          4  that they contribute to the communities where they

          5  are.

          6                 I am making this statement in a blank

          7  statement, I do not want to go into the

          8  particularities.  But the one that I mentioned to

          9  you in regard of the universities is the one that

         10  strikes me the most in my district.  I have so many

         11  universities that we should move out and let the

         12  universities take over.  That is what we should do

         13  in there, and see who will sustain the

         14  infrastructure in there.

         15                 Although, I understand the need for

         16  us to create a space for not- for- profit and help

         17  them to exist.  I am concerned about this constant

         18  blank statement about helping the not- for profits

         19  not to pay taxes.  And I am seriously concerned

         20  about that. And although I comprehend this

         21  legislation in part and this resolution, just in

         22  part, I do not understand why an institution that is

         23  a not- for- profit go engage in the buying of a

         24  property and it is not aware that they are

         25  responsible of the taxes that they had to pay until
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          2  they fulfill their obligations to fill out an

          3  application and grant an exemption.

          4                 I really do not understand this, and

          5  I would like if you can explain to me what is this

          6  about?

          7                 MR. MILLER:  I think it is more about

          8  the smaller institutions.  I do not think large

          9  universities, such as the ones that are in your

         10  district have any problems understanding the law.

         11  What this bill would do and the resolution supports

         12  our smaller not- for- profits, and not just

         13  religious institutions or schools, but you know any

         14  kind of not- for- profit that is by law eligible for

         15  an exemption.  And what this law would simply say

         16  is, okay, we have this thing right now called a

         17  taxable status date, January 5th, you know, people

         18  do not know what that means.  They think, okay, I am

         19  a not- for- profit, I have my 501- C- 3, I am

         20  entitled to an exemption, I have applied, why don't

         21  I get the exemption right now.  And they don't,

         22  because by law it depends when they purchase the

         23  property, if they purchased it after January 5th of

         24  say 2005, they are not going to get the exemption

         25  until July 1st 2007.  And I just think, you know,
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          2  this is one of those quirks in property law where we

          3  use a date, January 5th, the State Property Law that

          4  is confusing.

          5                 Now I don't think the larger

          6  universities that are, you know, that say dominate a

          7  neighborhood, they have lawyers and PR people and

          8  accountants.  I don't think they have any problem

          9  understanding the law.  It is the smaller ones.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then how does

         11  this apply to the smaller institutions that you are

         12  talking about, there is going to be a particular

         13  unit that is going to let them know that they are a

         14  small and they need to do this?

         15                 MR. MILLER:  You are suggesting that

         16  we target the law just to smaller institutions?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well what you

         18  are saying, yourself, I did not say it, you say it,

         19  that this is for a small institution.

         20                 MR. MILLER:  Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  That this is

         22  not for the institutions that I was referring to

         23  that affect neighborhoods like mine.  Therefore, if

         24  you said that then I am asking you how is this going

         25  to be target to them, if it is for them?  And how
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          2  that is reflected here?  Because I did not see it in

          3  here.

          4                 I understand that this is a blank

          5  statement for all not- for- profit corporations who

          6  buy property.  Then I am correct in that, that this

          7  is for all?

          8                 MR. MILLER:  It is, you are correct.

          9  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then if it is

         11  for all, it is not for those that are small.  And

         12  frankly, Mr. Chairman, and the members of this

         13  Committee, in the City of New York we have been

         14  strangled by this issue of not- for- profits not

         15  paying taxes of real estate property.  And it is

         16  something that has to be done in here, we cannot

         17  continue carrying this ball.

         18                 Then explain to me how is it that

         19  this go to the small one?

         20                 MR. MILLER:  Well I think what I am

         21  trying to say, maybe I am not being clear, and I

         22  apologize if I am not, Council member, but I think

         23  the smaller folks are going to benefit.  The larger

         24  folks already know what the law is.  Yes, they are

         25  going to benefit because now they are going to get
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          2  their exemption a little bit earlier also.  But I

          3  just think the fact that the smaller groups are not

          4  aware of this taxable status date issue, they

          5  already think that they get, most of them, they

          6  already think that they get the exemption from the

          7  date of purchase.  And what happens is that they

          8  don't then pay their taxes for a certain period, and

          9  you know, then they wind up paying a little bit of

         10  interest or they pay us later.

         11                 Now, this bill is going to give them

         12  what the majority of them think they already get.

         13  The larger groups, they are going to receive the

         14  same benefit, which is they are going to get their

         15  exemption a little earlier too.  But I think when I

         16  say it is targeted toward the smaller not- for-

         17  profits, I think it is going to benefit them more.

         18                 Now if you are saying that we should

         19  do some outreach to them and make sure they are

         20  aware of it, we can certainly do that.  But I think

         21  when they apply for their exemption, they get it

         22  right away, they are going to think that makes

         23  sense.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well the only

         25  thing that I am asking you is that if this is
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          2  intended for a particular group of people, then that

          3  particular group of people should be told, that is

          4  to begin with.  And that is a problem I see in the

          5  bill.

          6                 And secondly, I want to ask you, does

          7  this apply retroactively, or the dollars amount that

          8  are owed to the City of New York in regard to any

          9  property in back taxes at the time of the closing?

         10                 MR. MILLER:  No, it would not be

         11  retroactive.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  It will not be

         13  retroactive.

         14                 MR. MILLER: No.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Under no

         16  circumstances?

         17                 MR. MILLER:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You are sure

         19  of that?

         20                 MR. MILLER:  Well I will double

         21  check, but I am pretty sure that it is not

         22  retroactive.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Because that

         24  would be very unfair.  If a piece of legislation

         25  that is target to the point in which that particular
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          2  institution buy the property, it would really be

          3  unacceptable for this Committee, it should be

          4  unacceptable for the City of New York that we

          5  forgive back taxes on a property who were the one

          6  who own it should pay the taxes before the property

          7  is transferred.

          8                 MR. MILLER:  I am 90 percent certain

          9  that it is not retroactive, but I will confirm it

         10  after this meeting and let you know.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         12                 MR. MILLER:  Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I will have to

         14  abstain in this vote, because I do not think it is

         15  clarity in this particular legislation.  I think

         16  this is not a profit to vote it on today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         18  Council member.  I am going to allow Council Member

         19  Fidler to vote on all the coupled resolutions before

         20  us, which are, Jim, Resolution 393, 467, 478, 479,

         21  and the Preconsidered Resolution on the Sales Tax.

         22                 Council Member Fidler how do you

         23  vote?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Mr. Chairman,

         25  thank you very much for permitting me this.  I do
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          2  have some business that I really do need to attend

          3  to at the Rules Committee.

          4                 I would ask that my name be added as

          5  a co- sponsor on Resolutions 393 and 467.  I do want

          6  to commend both Council Members Jackson and Felder

          7  on both of these issues, I think they are very

          8  important.

          9                 I vote aye on all matters.  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Fidler votes

         12  aye.  I am now going to call upon David Moog, who is

         13  here to testify on behalf of Reso. 393.  Thank you,

         14  Commissioner Miller.  And David is with Local 1757

         15  of DC 37, I believe President of that local.

         16                 MR. MOOG:  Good morning.  I am David

         17  Moog, President of Local 1757.  I want to thank the

         18  Finance Committee for this opportunity to speak in

         19  favor of Resolution 393.

         20                 In March of 2002 I testified at the

         21  New York State Assembly hearing concerning the

         22  Assessor Corruption Scandal.  At that time the Real

         23  Property Tax Committee was eager to hear the

         24  different issues and opinions of how to improve

         25  Assessment Administration of New York City.  At
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          2  those hearings I made a number of recommendations

          3  that were all incorporated into a series of reform

          4  bills.  One of those reformed recommendations was

          5  listing a cap on assessment aid, a cap basically

          6  shortchanged the citizens of both New York City and

          7  Nassau County out of millions of dollars of aid.

          8                 I just want to also add that it was

          9  Assembly Member Scott Stringer who organized those

         10  hearings quite rapidly.  I think it was only two or

         11  three weeks that the scandal hit, he had a large

         12  hearing in Manhattan.

         13                 For the past two years I have lobbied

         14  to have these bills become law.  Each year I have

         15  come close to witness these bills passed only to see

         16  them shelved for another year.  It is my hope that

         17  this resolution will convey the importance of

         18  additional assessment aid and help move the bills to

         19  the Governor's desk for his signature.  Both the

         20  Senate and Assembly bills have cleared the

         21  Committees and are ready to be introduced onto the

         22  respective floors.

         23                 I hope that this resolution helps

         24  push this important measure forward.  I want to

         25  thank the members of the City Council, especially
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          2  Council Member Jackson and Council Member Weprin,

          3  who are sponsors of this resolution.  For the past

          4  two years they have listened to my testimony

          5  concerning the issues of Real Property Tax and about

          6  trying to get additional staffing for the Finance

          7  Department.  I would also like to thank the

          8  Commissioner of Finance for sending a letter to

          9  Albany in June supporting the Aid Bill.

         10                 It is my greatest hope that if these

         11  bills pass, the additional funding could be used to

         12  hire new assessing personnel. Even the Association

         13  of the Bar of the City of New York in their February

         14  2003 response paper to the Joint Task Force stated,

         15   "new assessor and assistant assessor lines must be

         16  added to the Department of Finance," with a

         17  substantial increase in personnel for the

         18  evaluation, policy, quality- control unit, formerly

         19  the Equalization Unit, which is responsible for

         20  assessment oversight. I have provided a copy of that

         21  February report.  The funding from this aid bill

         22  would easily facilitate the hiring of at least 40

         23  more assessors.  This would help alleviate some of

         24  the personnel shortages that the Finance Department

         25  has in assessment administration.  Just as a
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          2  comparison, the Assessor's Office in Nassau County,

          3  which has about the same size staff for a

          4  jurisdiction with half the number of parcels.

          5                 Again, I would like to thank the City

          6  Council for pushing this measure forward and remind

          7  you once against that an increase in funding, if

          8  properly spent, will result in a fairer and more

          9  equitable tax roll.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Moog.  Any questions?  Thank you.

         13                 The next witness also on Reso. 393 is

         14  Alaina Colon from Assembly Member Scott Stringer's

         15  Office.  The light has to be off to be on, it is a

         16  City Council thing.

         17                 MS. COLON:  My name is Alaina Colon.

         18  I am the Policy Director for Assembly Member Scott

         19  Stringer, who is in Albany today, so I am speaking

         20  on his behalf.

         21                  "Good morning.  My name is Assembly

         22  Member Scott Stringer.  I am proud to be the prime

         23  sponsor of Assembly Bill A.3732- b, which would

         24  remove the cap on the amount of State aid to

         25  localities for improved real property tax
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          2  administration.  It was during my tenure as Chair of

          3  the Assembly Committee on Real Property Taxation,

          4  which the problems of the assessment system that

          5  allowed the malfeasance performed by the 18 tax

          6  assessors, was exposed.  I was pleased to work with

          7  Chairperson David Weprin at his hearing on the

          8  scandal.  Our collaborative efforts led me to

          9  sponsor a package of legislation to reform the

         10  assessment process in our City.

         11                 As former Real Property Tax

         12  Chairperson, it is crystal clear to me that New York

         13  City needs every dollar to improve our system of

         14  real property tax assessment.  After hearings were

         15  held securing testimony from the Department of

         16  Finance, Union officials, and other affected

         17  individuals, I crafted a package of bills to reform

         18  the system which allowed for such long- term

         19  corruption.

         20                 Last year, my bill mandating

         21  financial disclosure for real property tax assessors

         22  became law.  And this is just one of many reforms

         23  that are needed.  In order to improve every aspect

         24  of our real property tax system, we need to increase

         25  state assessment aid.
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          2                 Currently, the State provides $5.00

          3  for each parcel that the locality maintains an up-

          4  to- date assessment.  However, with a $500,000 cap

          5  on this assistance, the State is shortchanging New

          6  York City of precious dollars needed to reform its

          7  system.  If we remove the cap, New York City would

          8  be eligible for as much as $4.2 million on an annual

          9  basis.  New York City is one of the only localities

         10  that does not receive its full share of State money

         11  due to this assessment aid cap.

         12                 My legislation, A.3723- b, removes

         13  the $500,000 cap in order to allow for New York City

         14  to collect all the assessment aid it should be

         15  eligible under the State formula.  With passage of

         16  my legislation, no longer can New York City be

         17  shortchanged in this respect.

         18                 Approval of City Council Resolution #

         19  393 would bring us one step closer to passage of

         20  this legislation.  And I want to thank Council

         21  Member Robert Jackson for bringing this resolution

         22  forward, and I thank the Council for its anticipated

         23  passage of this important resolution."

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Ms.
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          2  Colon.  Any questions?  The next witness is Marcia

          3  Eisenberg from the Jewish Community Relations

          4  Council of New York, who is here to testify on

          5  Resolution No. 467.

          6                 MS. EISENBERG:  Good morning.  Thank

          7  you very much for giving me the opportunity to

          8  testify on behalf of Resolution 467.  My name is

          9  Marcia Eisenberg.  I am the General Counsel and

         10  Director of Jewish Legal Assistance at the Jewish

         11  Community Relations Council of New York.  I have

         12  been the General Counsel for 18 years.  During these

         13  last 18 years I have spent an enormous amount of

         14  time working with and for Jewish Communal and

         15  Religious organizations which have New York City

         16  real property tax and water and sewer exemption

         17  problems.

         18                 Many City employees have spent a

         19  great deal of time working with churches,

         20  synagogues, schools and their advocates unsnarling

         21  exemption messes from organization.  I have spent

         22  the last 18 years also working in a coalition with

         23  the Queens Federation of Churches, the Council of

         24  Churches, and the Diocese, Archdiocese and the

         25  Diocese of Brooklyn because we all have similar
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          2  problems, and our churches, synagogues, and schools

          3  have always run into these problems.

          4                 A great many of these organization

          5  are ensnared in this problem that is trying to be

          6  resolved by Resolution 467.  It is the exemption

          7  gap.  The State Law for Real Estate requires the

          8  property be owned by a communal or a non- profit

          9  religious organization, and that there is an exempt

         10  activity being carried out at that particular

         11  property.  It is very hard for communal and

         12  religious organizations to grasp the idea that the

         13  owed taxes for a period of time when they were

         14  conducting legitimate exempt activities.

         15                 Does it make sense that a church or a

         16  synagogue, which buys a property on January 10th

         17  from an individual or for profit corporation owes

         18  one and a half years of taxes, when another

         19  organization, which buys property on the same date

         20  from another non- profit or church does not owe

         21  taxes?  Currently, the effective date of exemption

         22  is based on the identity of the seller, not the

         23  identity of who the buyer is.  So if the seller is a

         24  for- profit or an individual, you end up with an

         25  exemption gap.  And if it is another non- profit or
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          2  church, you cannot have an exemption gap. But most

          3  people do not get those finer distinctions,

          4  including many, many lawyers, et cetera, which is

          5  answering some of the questions, no one really gets

          6  it.  It is too fine a distinction.

          7                 There is such confusion and disbelief

          8  in legal circles over these technical rules that

          9  non- profits get bad advice. That which adds to the

         10  problem.  The confusion has led to the old in- rem

         11  actions where the properties were literally taken,

         12  deeded over to the City.  When I first started, I

         13  had to unsnarl 200 synagogues and schools, and get

         14  back the property.

         15                 And now we have the Tax Lien Sales

         16  where the liens get sold to third parties, and it

         17  just adds to the distress of most non- profits.

         18  Non- profits and communal organizations devote most

         19  of their dollars, almost all of their dollars to

         20  their mission, and an unexpected tax bill, because

         21  the address was incorrect, et cetera, can jeopardize

         22  the very existence of many of the organizations I

         23  work with.

         24                 So by allowing the Department of

         25  Finance to grant the exemption from the date of
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          2  sale, that would obviate an enormous drain on the

          3  non- profits and religious organizations.  And I

          4  think it would also help in the drain of resources

          5  in the City, which was mentioned before.

          6                 We, therefore, are very much in favor

          7  of this resolution.

          8                 I also would like to take this

          9  opportunity to bring a related issue to the City

         10  Council's attention, which I would like you to, at

         11  some point, take up a study.  That is the water and

         12  sewer charges.  This problem also impacts on the

         13  very same institutions we are talking about.

         14  According to the law, the New York City Comptroller

         15  has the power to cancel a variety of charges levied

         16  by New York City.  However, when the Water Board was

         17  created, the New York City Comptroller's Office no

         18  longer had the power to cancel old back water and

         19  sewer charges.

         20                 For communal and religious

         21  organizations there is an exemption gap which is

         22  getting worse.  Because they have an exemption gap,

         23  it would be from the date of purchase to whenever

         24  their exemption gets granted.  The problem is the

         25  application process takes a while, and they will not
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          2  start it now until you have the Department of

          3  Finance real property tax exemption. Therefore, you

          4  have a built- in gap, which can never be canceled.

          5  And I have been dealing with synagogues, and getting

          6  calls from the Queens Federation of Churches about a

          7  church, a lot of groups have gotten back water taxes

          8  that no one can cancel, which are thousands and

          9  thousands of dollars, which could just break a small

         10  non profit.

         11                 Thank you very much, and that is my

         12  testimony.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Ms.

         14  Eisenberg.  If you could stand there for a minute.

         15  Council Member Perkins, I believe, has a question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         17  very much.  I want to touch on the area that my

         18  colleague, Margarita Lopez raised earlier with

         19  regard to these giant, non- profit institutions that

         20  are very sophisticated and able to do what this

         21  resolution calls for, even though the smaller

         22  institutions don't.

         23                 But I think what she raises, most

         24  importantly, Mr. Chairman, that I would hope this

         25  Committee could possibly addressed, and that is the
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          2  fact that some of these large, non profit

          3  institutions, like Columbia University in my

          4  district, NYU in Lower Manhattan are not subject to

          5  the same type of taxes that others are subject to.

          6  They are paying these pilots, payment in lieu of

          7  taxes, and they are, to some extent, getting away

          8  without necessarily paying their share.  And I think

          9  it is a concern that has come up more than once in

         10  this Council.  I know that Council Member Alan

         11  Gerson has also raised it in some workshops that we

         12  have had.

         13                 So it may be an area that I think

         14  this Committee might want to look into further to

         15  see exactly what is this phenomena of such

         16  institutions being able to pay, to simply pay pilots

         17  and what impact that actually is having on

         18  communities, and on the City, in general.  So I just

         19  want to associate myself with this in these ways

         20  with regard to those types of institutions, even

         21  though in fact, it may appear that they are not the

         22  ones that this legislation is specifically

         23  targeting.  And in fact, this resolution is

         24  specifically targeting the smaller not- for- profits

         25  that do not have the wherewithal to understand the
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          2  process, and this will help them in this regard.  So

          3  of course I want to be supportive of that.

          4                 But I think more importantly the

          5  bigger problem is the one that Councilwoman

          6  Margarita raised, that I think we ought to try to

          7  address as a Committee and possibly see if there is

          8  some relief or some other way that the problems that

          9  she pointed out can be addressed.

         10                 MS. EISENBERG:  I can speak a little

         11  bit towards that.  About 1980 there was a study done

         12  because there was a great concern in the City that

         13  there were too many properties, they were all tax

         14  exempt, and there was all this, you know, we were

         15  losing lots of revenue.  I mean it was 24 years ago,

         16  22 years ago when it happened.

         17                 And a study was conducted, at that

         18  time with the Department of Finance, there is a book

         19  on it, I have it.  It was, and what came out of the

         20  study was, everyone was focused on the big

         21  organizations, like why can't Columbia University,

         22  you know, they are big, they are powerful, the Asian

         23  Society, et cetera.  And what came out of it was,

         24  and I can get you a copy of the book, I do not know

         25  if it is changed, there was a very small percentage
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          2  of the properties in New York City which actually

          3  were tax exempt.  A huge proportion of the tax

          4  exempt properties in New York City is something no

          5  one can do anything about because it is owned by the

          6  federal government, the state government, and the

          7  city.  That the percentage of property owned by non-

          8  profits, even the big ones, was not very large at

          9  all.  And the tax- base was not being eaten away by

         10  that.

         11                 Of course, that was a while ago, but

         12  it was like this perception that all these big

         13  organizations were eating away at the tax- base, and

         14  it came out, it was like less than 1 percent,

         15  because it was - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Well I am

         17  glad that you pointed that out.  Please share that

         18  with us.

         19                 I should point out however, in the 20

         20  years or so, that, when that book was written.

         21                 MS. EISENBERG:  I agree, it was 24

         22  years ago, but it was--

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  One of the

         24  institutions that tIme am thinking of, at last two

         25  of the ones I am thinking of, have in the 20 years
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          2  expanded maybe 20 times more in terms of the amount

          3  of property that they have under their umbrella then

          4  they did then.  Now I do not know what that means in

          5  terms of percentages or anything like that.  But

          6  whatever the case may be, I think it is a concern

          7  that has continuously come up, and we need to review

          8  it to see what merit, if any, there is to it.  And

          9  if there is some merit to it, then we need to see

         10  what remedial measures can be taken so that there is

         11  equity and some sense of fairness.  Because the

         12  concern is a concern that comes from folks in the

         13  neighborhoods, not just legislators.  This is the

         14  concern that comes to our attention, especially when

         15  we are in periods of fiscal challenge.  And we are,

         16  obviously, embarking upon a significant one next

         17  year.

         18                 But be that as it may, I think it is

         19  something, Mr. Chairman, that we should to deal

         20  with.  I know it is a controversial thing, we are

         21  dealing with powerful institutions that have a lot

         22  of political clout, but nevertheless, it is a

         23  responsibility that I do not think we could avoid.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council member,
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          2  I think you have raised some very good points.

          3                 MS. EISENBERG:  I had just one answer

          4  to that.  As far as I know, and this is something

          5  you can easily check with the Department of Finance,

          6  but I do not think it has really changed much in the

          7  18 years that I have been practicing in this area.

          8  There is over, as you have heard, 900,000 parcels of

          9  property in the Borough, in the City of New York.

         10  There is more or less, and this is easily checked,

         11  about 11,000 properties that are tax exempt.  And

         12  there is only about 5,000 that are water and sewer

         13  exempt.  These change as properties go back and

         14  forth, but as far as I know, it has not gone much

         15  beyond that in the 18 years that I have been

         16  practicing.

         17                 But, I mean, that is an easy check

         18  with the Department of Finance.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Sounds like

         20  you will be expert witness when we have that

         21  hearing.  Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Ms.

         23  Eisenberg. Council Member Lopez, did you have a

         24  question for Ms. Eisenberg? Ms. Eisenberg, could you

         25  come back?  Sorry, Council Member Lopez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  The lawyers

          3  that go to the closings of this property with the

          4  not- for- profit organizations, they go there to

          5  represent a client and to clarify during the closing

          6  process all of these issues, correct?

          7                 MS. EISENBERG:  You have a problem

          8  with non- profits. It is something that I have seen

          9  for years.  I consider myself, and I do not do this

         10  lightly, one of the experts in the City in this

         11  particular area, there is probably five people.  I

         12  get calls from lawyers from big law firms who cannot

         13  figure this stuff out.  And I sort of do a data

         14  dump, and then they understand what they have to do.

         15                 The problem is normal organizations

         16  go to their local lawyer, their real estate lawyer.

         17  Most real estate lawyers do not practice non- profit

         18  law, they do not look for all the quirks in the

         19  exemptions.

         20                 The lawyers that I work with in the

         21  large law firms focus on federal non- profit law.

         22  Well you do not have these kinds of quirks.  So that

         23  is why I said, I am one of the few people who knows

         24  about this, and I have to explain this over and

         25  over, I could like push a button to explain to
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          2  lawyers in sort of one set of language, and explain

          3  to synagogues and churches what in the world is

          4  going on.

          5                 So people do not ask the right

          6  questions, they do not understand, they say, oh, you

          7  are a non- profit, everything, you know, they just

          8  do not get to that point.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then you just

         10  answered my question then, because the reason I

         11  asked you that, because this sounds like a foot

         12  doctor who goes to represent a client, and that foot

         13  doctor should not be there because it is a surgeon

         14  for the heart who should be there.

         15                 Therefore, the question that I have

         16  is in regard of why lawyers are not held responsible

         17  when they go and represent these particular

         18  organizations for what happened, for the bad advice

         19  and bad service they have done to the clients,

         20  because they are supposed to be sitting in there

         21  collecting a check for making sure that every "t" is

         22  crossed, and every "i" have a period on top of it.

         23  Why is it then that they are not held responsible,

         24  and also the Title Search Company?

         25                 MS. EISENBERG:  I do not know why.  I
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          2  have tried, I have written something about the tax

          3  status years ago and I have sent it to as many

          4  lawyers as I could.  I sent it to the title

          5  companies, but if you are not faced with it and you

          6  are not doing a non- profit closing you don't, you

          7  know, it gets put somewhere in the back of your

          8  mind.

          9                 The other thing you have to

         10  understand is synagogues, churches, small places,

         11  many times they do not have, they are not paying a

         12  lawyer.  It is someone on their Board, it is someone

         13  who is doing them a favor.  So you know, you don't

         14  have the normal kind of lawyer/client relationship

         15  that is going on. Everyone thinks that they are in

         16  the same room, they are doing a good thing, and they

         17  are all focused on the mission of that organization

         18  and they are just, just don't know how they can fall

         19  into the pitfalls.

         20                 And there is a lot of incorrect

         21  information that is floating around.  I get calls

         22  from lawyers saying I heard if you do X, Y and Z, it

         23  is okay.  And I am going, boy, I don't where you got

         24  that one from.  And they have even gotten incorrect

         25  information and advice sometimes from the City, from
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          2  the various agencies.  So I feel like it has been an

          3  uphill battle and there is just a lot of information

          4  that does not get to the right people.  And it is

          5  just very diffuse.  I mean I have tried all kinds of

          6  things.

          7                 I am going to try to do a CLE on this

          8  and try to attract as many as lawyers as I can.  But

          9  you know it is never going to be, the lawyers to do

         10  the work, sometimes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Mr. Chairman,

         12  I just want to make one more comment and it is in

         13  regard of what I brought before, and Council Member

         14  Perkins also touched on it again.  And it is in

         15  regard of the universities that had built hundreds

         16  and hundreds of leaving of housing, housing.  They

         17  are housing, and in their housing they have tax

         18  exempt status.  The housing space has been taken

         19  away from the communities, in many cases some of the

         20  land in question was City- owned land, and

         21  construction happened and therefore dormitories, et

         22  cetera, et cetera.  And the meanwhile the

         23  infrastructure of those entire communities are used,

         24  but no contribution is given by those particular

         25  housing units that have built in there.  And that
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          2  should be one area that we should look in regard of

          3  this question of changing taxation.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:   Thank you,

          6  Council member. Before we proceed to a vote on the

          7  coupled resolutions, I am going to call upon Council

          8  Member Christine Quinn to make a statement, if she

          9  likes regarding the Preconsidered Resolution

         10  extending the sales tax free week in the area around

         11  Madison Square Garden, which happens to be in

         12  Council Member Quinn's District.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you very

         14  much.  I hope that the Committee and the full

         15  Council will support this request about tax free

         16  shopping week.  You know as we all know and

         17  understand much of the area around Madison Square

         18  Garden is going to be somewhat of a frozen zone, so-

         19  to- speak, during the Republican National

         20  Convention.  And obviously, the Police Department

         21  and other law enforcement need to do what they thing

         22  is right to protect New York City, the Convention,

         23  the Conventioneers, et cetera.

         24                 The message that many of the streets

         25  around the Garden will be closed off has been, you
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          2  know, very, very well publicized.  The tax free

          3  shopping week, which we all know has been a real

          4  benefit to stores in New York City, has also been

          5  well publicized, and that week is the same week as

          6  the Republican National Convention.

          7                 So the fact that aside from perhaps

          8  of the Conventioneers coming in and out of the

          9  Garden, there will not be a lot of foot traffic to

         10  the stores around the Garden, and there are many,

         11  you know, 34th Street is a major shopping corridor,

         12  and those store owners were very much relying and

         13  hoping on getting additional revenues because of the

         14  tax free shopping week.

         15                 It is only fair since those folks are

         16  not really going to get the benefit that other store

         17  owners will to offer those store owners a tax free

         18  shopping week.  Because they are really being kind

         19  of robbed of it by extending the week in this

         20  particular area to the week following the Garden.

         21                 Also, as another effort to draw

         22  people to these stores to make sure that some of the

         23  negatives we have heard about Boston of store owners

         24  not really having a lot of customers does not happen

         25  is the idea of waiving the parking fee at meters for
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          2  the Saturday and Sunday after the Convention, to try

          3  to bring more folks to the area.

          4                 So the item before us in this

          5  Committee today is just on the tax free shopping,

          6  but I mention the other item so that people know

          7  that this is part of a thoughtful and comprehensive

          8  attempt to really support the businesses in that

          9  area, recognizing, of course, security comes first.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, very well

         12  taken.  We are now going to call the roll on the

         13  coupled resolutions as the Counsel to the Committee

         14  rounds up the remaining members for a quorum.  But

         15  the resolutions, for the record, that are going to

         16  be coupled are Reso. 393, Reso. 467, Resolution 478-

         17  a, Resolution 479 a, and Preconsidered Resolution

         18  that Council Member Quinn just referred to.  Just

         19  please bear with me one minute.  Okay, call the

         20  roll.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Abstention in

         25  467 Reso. And aye on the rest.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I just want

          4  to take a quick moment to explain my vote.  I,

          5  obviously, want to vote aye on all, but I want to

          6  take a moment to lend my voice of support

          7  specifically to a) the concern that was raised

          8  earlier by Councilwoman Lopez with regard to the

          9  not- for- profit institutions that are in the City,

         10  and especially in Manhattan.  But I also want to

         11  underscore the Preconsidered Resolution that was

         12  presented by Councilwoman Christine Quinn, as one

         13  that is not only fair, but also shows some insight

         14  about what is actually going on in our City at this

         15  time.  I would like to even go so far as to suggest

         16  that I dare say that it will not only just be that

         17  area surrounding Madison Square Garden that will be

         18  negatively impacted, the businesses will be

         19  negatively impacted.  But I will dare say that there

         20  may be negative impacts even beyond that during that

         21  period because there are people who are going to be

         22  leaving town anyway that might not want to do be

         23  doing any shopping.  But I do not, obviously, think

         24  that it is going to be anywhere like what is going

         25  to be happening in that particular area.  So I think

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  it is very important that we take into consideration

          3  that and support this Preconsidered Resolution.  So

          4  I vote aye on that again.  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I am going to

          7  vote aye on all.  But also 467, I just want to make

          8  note of, this is something that will really help the

          9  little guy and little gal.  We are not, you know the

         10  bigger institutions they have a team of lawyers that

         11  they can put Mark Geragos (phonetic) in jail.  We

         12  are not concerned about them.  This is going to help

         13  those particular institutions that really get lost

         14  in the wash, and I am very happy to vote aye on it.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Aye on all,

         22  and I would like to be added as a sponsor of Reso. #

         23  393, and I do worry about how much money we have

         24  lost by not having the kind of support that Assembly

         25  Member Stringer has advocated for.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gioia.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I vote yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER Jackson:  Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Permission to

          8  explain my vote.  I vote aye on all, but I believe

          9  we have to, one, recognize what Margarita Lopez has

         10  stated.  And the reason I think they should be

         11  separated and should be looked at is that we can

         12  correct what issue has been raised by Council Member

         13  Perkins, that the smaller groups of not- for-

         14  profits should not be held hostage to the action

         15  that we could take in the future, but certainly we

         16  need to look at that.  I vote aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gallagher.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I vote aye

         19  on all, with the exception of Reso. 393, which I

         20  will abstain.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Is that aye,

          3  before pass, or?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 15 in

          7  the affirmative, 0 in the negative, with no

          8  abstentions, all items are adopted, with the

          9  exception of Resolution 467 and Resolution 393 which

         10  are both adopted by a vote of 14 in the affirmative,

         11  0 in the negative, and 1 abstentions each.

         12                 Council members, please sign the

         13  Committee reports.  Thank you.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:05 a.m.)
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